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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This picturesque cottage-type, Carpenter Gothic style residence is located on a corner 
lot opposite the site of the Spring Hill Female Academy. The academy was torn down 
in recent years. The present owners of the house made the only major changes to 
the structure since it was built in 1878. The house changed ownership and occupants 
many times but the original building remained unchanged up to 1950.

For several years the present owner used it as rental property. The owners have used 
the house as a winter home in recent years. They added the kitchen wing and enclosed 
the open porch. A bathroom has been built in the former closet for the first-story 
bedroom. The original cellar is located under the kitchen addition.

The structure is a two-story, rectangular shape, frame construction built on stone 
masonry foundation. It features a decorated end gable entrance, board and batten 
siding, and steeply-pitched gable roof with gable wall dormers at each side elevation. 
The one-story kitchen addition extends across the south rear elevation. The former 
porch extends back from the right side of the main facade. The original, chimneyless 
kitchen located in the side yard has been removed.

The main facade features the original wood carpentry, doors and sashes. The side 
hall entrance door has a molded cap to match the window enframement. The fan-shaped 
transom light is set in the rectangular wood panel above the door. The two identical 
windows to the left side of the door and the third window above the center bay comprise 
the one bay over three bay symmetry. The batten heads form a decorative relief design 
at the second-story string course. The wide rake boards are enhanced by the large 
carved wood brackets and scalloped vergebpards are attached to the roof overhang at 
each elevation of the original section of the house. The additions are frame, board 
and batten, and painted white to match the original construction, A hood has been 
attached to the east elevation over the entrance to the rear parlor. The shutters 
are original. The central chimney is constructed of brick.

The original section has remained unchanged. These rooms feature the original wood 
carpentry, moldings, mantles and flooring. The plaster on lath walls has jbeen 
wall-papered, and the woodwork has been painted. The staircase is located at the 
back of the entrance h&ll. The front parlor is to the left of the hall. The fire­ 
places for the two parlor rooms are back to back. The staircase has steep risers 
and mid-stage winders. It is built across the right wall, opposite the entrance. 
Wall cabinets open out of the left side wall on the stairs. The second story is 
partitioned for two rooms, and a balustrade is built across the open stairwell at the 
top of the staircase. The dormer windows are casement-type windows which come to 
the floor level. The downstairs bedroom is a one-story back wing of the original sec­ 
tion of the house. This room and the former side porch were attached to the back 
parlor room. The ceilings are twelve feet high on the main floor, but are reduced 
in height for the dormer rooms on the second story.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This cottage type residence designed in the Carpenter Gothic style is a significant 
addition to the historical architectural inventory of Tennessee because it represents 
the type of plans and designs published by architects and master builders of the 
nineteenth century who advocated the revival of the picturesque which was well 
represented in the American Carpenter Gothic style. This residence was built during 
the 1870s and it remained unchanged for over seventy years. The main section of 
this house is original and the 1950 additions do not detract from the historic value. 
Skilled carpentry work and careful refinement of detail make this house important 
to preserve. It is one of two remaining structures built in this community which 
feature the Carpenter Gothic style of architecture.

The house was built in 1878-1879 for Peter and Elizabeth R. Ritter. Three succeeding 
owners' names appear on the early deed records. The Ritter family conveyed the 
property to John C. Witt on March 1, 1886. The property was conveyed to W. H. Witt, 
October 20, 1896, and it was sold to A. P. Odil in January 1899. It has been called 
the "kissing house" by residents of Spring Hill who recall the story about Miss Odil 
who was awarded a court settlement for a breach of engagement against Mr: Hugh Brown 
who married another.
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